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Federal Maritime Commission § 506.4 

§ 506.1 Scope and purpose. 
The purpose of this Part is to estab-

lish a mechanism for the regular ad-
justment for inflation of civil mone-
tary penalties and to adjust such pen-
alties in conformity with the Federal 
Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment 
Act of 1990, 46 U.S.C. 2461, as amended 
by the Debt Collection Improvement 
Act of 1996, Public Law 104–134, April 
26, 1996, in order to maintain the deter-
rent effect of civil monetary penalties 
and to promote compliance with the 
law. 

§ 506.2 Definitions. 
(a) Commission means the Federal 

Maritime Commission. 
(b) Civil Monetary Penalty means any 

penalty, fine, or other sanction that: 
(1)(i) Is for a specific monetary 

amount as provided by Federal law; or 
(ii) Has a maximum amount provided 

by Federal law; 
(2) Is assessed or enforced by the 

Commission pursuant to Federal law; 
and 

(3) Is assessed or enforced pursuant 
to an administrative proceeding or a 
civil action in the Federal Courts. 

(c) Consumer Price Index means the 
Consumer Price Index for all urban 
consumers published by the Depart-
ment of Labor. 

§ 506.3 Civil monetary penalty infla-
tion adjustment. 

The Commission shall, not later than 
October 23, 1996, and at least once 
every 4 years thereafter— 

(a) By regulation adjust each civil 
monetary penalty provided by law 
within the jurisdiction of the Commis-
sion by the inflation adjustment de-
scribed in § 506.4; and 

(b) Publish each such regulation in 
the FEDERAL REGISTER. 

§ 506.4 Cost of living adjustments of 
civil monetary penalties. 

(a) The inflation adjustment under 
§ 506.3 shall be determined by increas-
ing the maximum civil monetary pen-
alty for each civil monetary penalty by 
the cost-of-living adjustment. Any in-
crease determined under this sub-
section shall be rounded to the nearest: 

(1) Multiple of $10 in the case of pen-
alties less than or equal to $100; 

(2) Multiple of $100 in the case of pen-
alties greater than $100 but less than or 
equal to $1,000; 

(3) Multiple of $1,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $1,000 but less 
than or equal to $10,000; 

(4) Multiple of $5,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $10,000 but less 
than or equal to $100,000; 

(5) Multiple of $10,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $100,000 but less 
than or equal to $200,000; and 

(6) Multiple of $25,000 in the case of 
penalties greater than $200,000. 

(b) For purposes of paragraph (a) of 
this section, the term ‘cost-of-living 
adjustment’ means the percentage (if 
any) for each civil monetary penalty 
by which the Consumer Price Index for 
the month of June of the calendar year 
preceding the adjustment, exceeds the 
Consumer Price Index for the month of 
June of the calendar year in which the 
amount of such civil monetary penalty 
was last set or adjusted pursuant to 
law. 

(c) Limitation on initial adjustment. 
The first adjustment of civil monetary 
penalty pursuant to § 506.3 may not ex-
ceed 10 percent of such penalty. 

(d) Inflation adjustment. Maximum 
civil monetary penalties within the ju-
risdiction of the Federal Maritime 
Commission are adjusted for inflation 
as follows: 

United States Code Citation Civil Monetary Penalty description 
Current max-
imum penalty 

amount 

New adjusted 
maximum pen-

alty amount 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 817d ................................. Failure to establish financial responsi-
bility for death or injury.

5,500 
220 

6,000 
1 220 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 817e ................................. Failure to establish financial responsi-
bility for non-performance of transpor-
tation.

5,500 
220 

6,000 
1 220 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 876 ................................... Failure to provide required reports, 
etc.—Merchant Marine Act of 1920.

5,500 6,000 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 876 ................................... Adverse shipping conditions/Merchant 
Marine Act of 1920.

1,100,000 1,175,000 
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46 CFR Ch. IV (10–1–06 Edition) § 506.5 

United States Code Citation Civil Monetary Penalty description 
Current max-
imum penalty 

amount 

New adjusted 
maximum pen-

alty amount 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 876 ................................... Operating after tariff or service contract 
suspension/Merchant Marine Act of 
1920.

55,000 60,000 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 1710a ............................... Adverse impact on U.S. carriers by for-
eign shipping practices.

1,100,000 1,175,000 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 1712 ................................. Operating in foreign commerce after tar-
iff suspension.

55,000 60,000 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 1712 ................................. Knowing and willful violation/Shipping 
Act of 1984 or Commission regulation 
or order.

27,500 30,000 

46 U.S.C. app. sec. 1712 ................................. Violation of Shipping Act of 1984, Com-
mission regulation or order, not know-
ing or willful.

5,500 6,000 

31 U.S.C. sec. 3802(a)(1) ................................ Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act/giv-
ing false statement.

5,500 6,000 

31 U.S.C. sec. 3802(a)(2) ................................ Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act/giv-
ing false statement.

5,500 6,000 

1 Application of the statutory rounding resulted in no increase to these penalties. 

[61 FR 52705, Oct. 8, 1996, as amended at 64 FR 23550, May 3, 1999; 65 FR 49741, Aug. 15, 2000] 

§ 506.5 Application of increase to viola-
tions. 

Any increase in a civil monetary pen-
alty under this part shall apply only to 
violations which occur after the date 
the increase takes effect. 

PART 507—ENFORCEMENT OF 
NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE 
BASIS OF HANDICAP IN PRO-
GRAMS OR ACTIVITIES CON-
DUCTED BY THE FEDERAL MARI-
TIME COMMISSION 

Sec. 
507.101 Purpose. 
507.102 Application. 
507.103 Definitions. 
507.104–507.109 [Reserved] 
507.110 Self-evaluation. 
507.111 Notice. 
507.112–507.129 [Reserved] 
507.130 General prohibitions against dis-

crimination. 
507.131–507.139 [Reserved] 
507.140 Employment. 
507.141–507.148 [Reserved] 
507.149 Program accessibility: Discrimina-

tion prohibited. 
507.150 Program accessibility: Existing fa-

cilities. 
507.151 Program accessibility: New con-

struction and alterations. 
507.152–507.159 [Reserved] 
507.160 Communications. 
507.161–507.169 [Reserved] 
507.170 Compliance procedures. 
507.171–507.999 [Reserved] 

AUTHORITY: 29 U.S.C. 794. 

SOURCE: 51 FR 22895, 22896, June 23, 1986, 
unless otherwise noted. 

§ 507.101 Purpose. 
This part effectuates section 119 of 

the Rehabilitation, Comprehensive 
Services, and Developmental Disabil-
ities Amendments of 1978, which 
amended section 504 of the Rehabilita-
tion Act of 1973 to prohibit discrimina-
tion on the basis of handicap in pro-
grams or activities conducted by Exec-
utive agencies or the United States 
Postal Service. 

§ 507.102 Application. 
This part applies to all programs or 

activities conducted by the agency. 

§ 507.103 Definitions. 
For purposes of this part, the term— 
Assistant Attorney General means the 

Assistant Attorney General, Civil 
Rights Division, United States Depart-
ment of Justice. 

Auxiliary aids means services or de-
vices that enable persons with im-
paired sensory, manual, or speaking 
skills to have an equal opportunity to 
participate in, and enjoy the benefits 
of, programs or activities conducted by 
the agency. For example, auxiliary aids 
useful for persons with impaired vision 
include readers, brailled materials, 
audio recordings, telecommunications 
devices and other similar services and 
devices. Auxiliary aids useful for per-
sons with impaired hearing include 
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